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 This Addendum forms a part of the Request for Proposal and modifies the original 
solicitation package as noted below.   
 
 

- Proposal due date has been extended to Wednesday, July 13, 2016 no later than 2 
pm. 

 
- Modifications to RFP. 
 

Attachment - Revised Part 5: Ground Lease Agreement, Exhibit I: Milestones  
  and Liquidated Damages 

 
- Responses to questions. 

 
 

  
 

 
Proposals are due Wednesday, July 13, 2016, and should be time stamped no later than 

2:00 p.m. EST on this day, and delivered to the address below: 
Adam L. Smith, Esq., CPPO, CPPB, CPPM, CPP, CIPC, CISCC, CIGPM 

Chief Procurement Officer 
Department of Procurement 

55 Trinity Avenue, S.W. 
City Hall South, Suite 1900 

Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
 

***All other information remains unchanged*** 
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Acknowledgement of Addendum No. 1 
 
 Proponents must sign below and return this form with its proposal to the Department of 
Procurement, 55 Trinity Avenue, City Hall South, Suite 1900, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 as 
acknowledgement of receipt of this addendum on this _____day of _________, 20____.  
 
 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Legal Company Name of Respondent 

 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Date 
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FC-8783, Green Acres ATL Energy Park 
 

Addendum No. 1 
 

Modifications to RFP 
 
 
1. Proposal due date has been extended to Wednesday, July 13, 2016 no later than 2 pm. 
 
2. Revision to Part 5: Ground Lease Agreement: 
 
Delete Section 3.5, Renewals in its entirety and replace with the following: 
 
Section 3.5, Renewals.  The Lease Agreement is subject to two (2), five (5) year renewal options, 
each of which is to be independently exercised at the sole discretion of the City. If applicable, 
notice of the City’s intention to renew this Lease Agreement will be provided to Lessee within 
thirty (30) days of the twenty-eighth (28) anniversary of the Effective Date. If applicable, notice of 
the City’s intention to renew this Lease Agreement for a second and final renewal will be provided 
to Lessee within thirty (30) days of the thirty-third (33) anniversary of the Effective Date. Any 
renewals shall be at the City’s sole discretion and will require the approval of the City Council and, 
if granted, will require the execution of an appropriate renewal document. 
 
3. Revisions to Part 5: Ground Lease Agreement, Exhibit E: Background and Program 

Requirements - Green Acres ATL Energy Park: 
 
Delete Section 3.2.1 in its entirety and replace with the following: 

 
Section 3.2.1. Lessee must repurpose/reprocess/recycle at least ninety percent (90%) of the 
Baseline Feedstock delivered from the Airport and DPW as well as any additional waste streams 
acquired by Lessee, by January 1, 2020. The facility shall be in full compliance with Federal and 
State regulations and contractual standards for treatment and disposal of MSW; 
 
4. Revisions to Part 5: Ground Lease Agreement, Exhibit I: Milestones and Liquidated Damages: 
 
Delete Exhibit I: Milestones and Liquidated Damages in its entirety. 

Replace with Exhibit I: Milestones and Liquidated Damages attached hereto. 
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ATTACHMENT 
 

Revised Part 5: Ground Lease Agreement, Exhibit I: Milestones and 
Liquidated Damages 
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EXHIBIT I 
MILESTONES AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

 
1.  The parties hereby agree that the damages which City will sustain as a result of    Lessee’s 

failure to meet Ground Lease Milestones are difficult or impossible to determine with 
certainty and, therefore, have in good faith estimated as fair compensation, the 
Liquidated Damages as set forth below. If Lessee fails to deliver the equipment or 
materials or perform the services within the times specified in this Lease Agreement for 
the established Milestones & Beneficial Occupancy, or any extensions granted in writing, 
the Lessee shall pay to City as fixed, agreed and Liquidated Damages for each calendar day 
or minute of delay the sum(s) specified below, which amounts shall be independently 
calculated as follows: 

 
NO. GROUND LEASE MILESTONES AND LEASE 

REQUIREMENTS 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

1. Lessee shall achieve Substantial Completion, as 
defined in Exhibit C, of the initial Program 
Requirements and begin accepting the Baseline 
Feedstock within three hundred 
(300) calendar days from the Effective Date. 

One Thousand Dollars and 
Zero Cents ($1,000.00) per 
calendar day. 

2. Lessee must repurpose/reprocess/recycle at 
least ninety (90%) of the Baseline Feedstock 
delivered from the Airport and DPW, and any 
additional waste streams acquired by Lessee, by 
January 2020 and provide documentation 
supporting and validating this milestone. 

One Thousand Dollars and 
Zero Cents ($1,000) per 
calendar day. 

3. Following Beneficial Occupancy, failure to 
accept Baseline Feedstock for a period 
exceeding seventy two (72) consecutive hours. 

Actual tipping costs 
incurred by City. 

 
2. Application of Liquidated Damages not a Change. The application of Liquidated Damages 

shall not effect a change in the Beneficial Occupancy or relieve Lessee of its obligation to 
improve its progress to achieve, or to mitigate the failure to achieve, the Beneficial 
Occupancy Date or stated area reopening. 

 
3. Payment of Liquidated Damages. Payments of Liquidated Damages shall become due 

immediately upon failure to achieve the stated milestone.  
 
4. No Restriction of Rights and Remedies. Nothing in this clause shall operate to restrict 

any other rights and remedies available to the City at law or under this Lease Agreement.
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Responses to Questions 
Question  Response 
1) On November 6, 2015, our Firm submitted 
a Response Statement to the City of Atlanta 's 
Department of Procurement for FC-8520, Request 
for Information ("RFI") for Waste Reduction 
Facilities. Our question is: Is the City going to 
submit another tender (RFP or similar) for a waste 
management plant, based on the FC-8520 RFI? 

This question does not request information about 
this process.  We recommend that you address 
your question to the department that issued the 
RFI. 

2) Currently, the City of Atlanta collects 
curbside garbage, which is tipped at privately 
owned transfer stations. Our questions are: 
 
a. What  is the current  tipping fee? 
 
b. What  is the  currently  existing rate  of 
diversion  for this waste stream? 
 

The Department of Aviation does not handle 
curbside MSW for the City of Atlanta.  Please 
direct your inquiry to the department with 
responsibility for that City function. 

3) Concerning point "5.2. Rent Defined" of 
the Ground Lease Agreement our questions are: 
 
a. Baseline feedstock: Please confirm the 
only tipping fees to be paid by the City of Atlanta 
will be tipping fees for MSW delivered to the ATL 
Energy Park for waste streams generated from the  
Airport. 
 
b. Baseline feedstock: Please confirm that 
chipped yard trimmings delivered from the City's 
DPW have to be treated  at no charge. 
 
c. Supplemental  waste  streams:  Please  
confirm  that  supplemental  waste  streams  to  be 
treated through the ATL Energy Park should be 
acquired at the sole discretion of the Proponent  
(subject to the terms  of the Ground  Lease), and 
the City of Atlanta  will  not  pay any tipping fee for 
these supplemental waste streams. 
 

3a.  Please refer to the Ground Lease Section 5.2 
and Exhibit E, Section 2.2 regarding Baseline 
Feedstock and tipping fees.  
 
3b.  Please refer to the Ground Lease Section 5.23 
and Exhibit E, Section 2.2 regarding Baseline 
Feedstock and tipping fees. 
 
3c. Yes, supplemental waste streams should be 
acquired by the Proponent, in accordance with 
Exhibit E, Section 2.3.  Tipping fees for such 
supplemental waste streams will be determined in 
accordance with the Ground Lease Section 5.2.5 
and Exhibit E, Section 2.3.2. 

4) In point 1.8.9 of Part 2 of the RFP, it is 
stated: "Proponents shall identify any constraints 
to achieve the Airport 's goal of ninety (90%) 
percent landfill diversion of municipal solid waste 
generated by the Airport by January 1, 2020". Our 
questions are: 

4a. Yes.  
 
4b.  Yes, but the facility must verify and document 
a minimum of ninety (90%) percent 
repurposing/reprocessing/recycling of the baseline 
feedstock delivered from the Airport and City’s 
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a. Is this  goal  of 90% landfill  diversion 
mandatory? 
 
b. Can we propose a facility with less landfill 
diversion rate, initially sized for processing 
baseline feedstock (Airport MSW and chipped yard 
trimmings), should this facility be scalable to 
ultimately being sized and capable of processing 
200,000 tons of MSW annually? 
 

DPW, as well as any additional waste streams 
acquired by Lessee, by January 1, 2010, as 
indicated in the Ground Lease.  All qualifying 
proposals will be considered.   

5) Concerning point "2.3 Additional Waste 
Stream(s)" of Ground Lease Agreement 's Exhibit E, 
our questions are: 
 
a. In order to harness the investment to be 
made on the equipment for the ATL Energy Park, 
can the City of Atlanta guarantee to provide the 
successful Proponent with additional waste 
streams (up to 200,000 tons of MSW annually)? 
 
b.         Can we propose different tipping fees for 
additional waste streams delivered by the City of 
Atlanta, depending on different landfill diversion 
rates targeted? 

5a.  No. 
 
5b. Any tipping fee associated with supplemental 
waste streams will be determined per Exhibit E, 
Section 2.3.2. 

 

 

 

END 
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